
TOWN OF BELGRADE 

 

 

 

 
September 20, 2022 

SELECTBOARD MEETING 

6:30 p.m. 



 
T O W N  O F  B E L G R A D E  

Meeting Agenda 
BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS 

SEPTEMBER 20, 2022 /  6:30 P.M. 
BELGRADE TOWN OFFICE 

 

This meeting will be conducted in person. The public may also view the meeting and participate online 
at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984 

 

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Public Comments 

OLD BUSINESS 

Review September 6 Meeting Minutes (Action) 

Bench Request / Mr. Beck, to be placed in the Village (Action) 

Finalize Cooperative Agreement / Maine D.O.T. – Belgrade Water System (Action) 

Minot Hill Road Chip Sealing: Update, discussion / Road Commissioner (Action) 

Town Office Hours (Action) 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Dalton Property: Updates on plumbing, electrical / Facility Maint. Supervisor (Action) 

2023 Budget: Set meeting dates and times (Action) 

Review, approve AP Warrant #106 $1,149,265.29; Payroll Warrant #104 $16,742.48 (Action) 

Health Officer Resignation (Action) 

Payroll Disbursement Policy Revision (Action) 

Request from Belgrade PTO re: Bingo (Action) 

 

TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 

 See attached 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION: 1 M.R.S.A. §405(6)(A) – Personnel matter  
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS:   Road Committee 9/21/22 at 6:30 p.m. 

      Select Board 10/4/2022 at 6:30 p.m. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81131427984


 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• REVIEW and APPROVE MEETING 

MINUTES (Action) 



 

1 | P a g e  
 

Town of Belgrade 

Board of Selectpersons  

MEETING MINUTES 
September 6, 2022 

 

This meeting can be viewed at: https://youtu.be/DtzHoyG5H0c 

 
 
Present: Chair Melanie Jewell, Selectperson Carol Johnson, Selectperson Barbara Allen, Town 
Manager Lorna Nichols, Town Clerk Mary Vogel, Planning Board Chair Peter Rushton, Bruce 
Galouch, Dan MacGlashing, Scott Nichols, Mark Chrisos, Diane Oliver, Christine Emmons, 
Kathy Atkinson, Jamie Dionne, Liz Fontaine, Sara H. Languet, Lennie Goff, Craig Alexander, 
Jan Partridge. 
 
Remote Attendees: Lenny Reich, Nicholas Alexander, Selectman Dan Newman, Linda 
Sprague, Linda Bacon, Selectman Rick Damren, Richard Bourne, Travis Warren, Me DOT Tony 
Beaulieu, Me DOT Devan Eaton, Justin, Kate Beales. 
 
Chair Melanie Jewell called the meeting to order at 6:34 p.m. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Selectperson Barbara Allen publicly thanked Town Clerk Mary Vogel for serving as Interim 
Town Manager until the Town hired a permanent Town Manager. 

 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
August 16, 2022, Minutes 
 

Chair Melanie Jewell moved to accept the minutes of August 16, 2022, as written, 
Selectperson Barbara Allen seconded, vote 4-1 with Selectman Rick Damren 
abstaining. 

 
Request for a bench to be placed in Belgrade Lakes Village – Mr. Beck 
 

Recreation Direction Dan MacGlashing shared that Parks and Recreation had come up 
with several places for the bench to include the Center for All Seasons, all parks, and the 
Village. Long Pond Park on Lake Shore Drive or Peninsula Park would be suitable. They 
were asked to identify a place for the bench that Mr. Beck would like to purchase in 
memory of his late wife. 

 
Diane Oliver (Friends of Belgrade Business Group) indicated that through fundraising 
efforts, the group had sold fifteen benches, nine bicycle racks and thirty-six lamp posts 

https://youtu.be/DtzHoyG5H0c


 

2 | P a g e  
 

for the Village area beautification project. They currently have 9-10 people on a waiting 
list to memorialize loved ones. She is not sure if you could purchase only one bench but 
the group is happy to work with the Town, Parks and Recreation to ensure continuity of 
future purchases. 

 
Kathy Atkinson (Friends group member) asked if the Town accepted the $5,000 
donation for the bench – are they now moving into fundraising activities? Does not 
adding benches require a referendum vote to place the bench?  

 
Town Clerk Mary Vogel stated that the prior referendum question was to accept the 
gift(s) of benches from a private group, not to place them. 

 
After additional discussion, Selectperson Barbara Allen moved to table this and to 
set up a working group representing representatives of the Facilities and 
Maintenance Department, Parks and Recreation, the Friends Group and the Select 
Board to work out any issues and concerns; Selectperson Carol Johnson 
seconded, vote 5-0. 

 
Discussion and finalization of amendments to the Town of Belgrade Commercial 
Development Review Ordinance  
 

Peter Rushton, Chair of the Planning Board presented the final draft of the proposed 
solar facility regulations and other amendments to Belgrade’s existing Commercial 
Development Review Ordinance with two substantiative changes: 

 
1. The addition of the language discussed at the August 2nd meeting to extend the life of 
a permit under this ordinance for a solar facility previously approved by the Planning 
Board from a maximum of 24 months to a maximum of 48 months, if its permit expired 
while the moratorium was in effect, preventing reapplying for approval. 

 
2. The elimination of prohibitions on siting new commercial solar facilities in the 
Shoreland Zone, and in the Village and the Critical Resource Conservation Districts as 
described and mapped by the 2014 Comprehensive Plan. The Courts have ruled that 
such a provision is only permissible if part of a town zoning ordinance. Belgrade’s only 
zoning is of course its Shoreland Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Board discussed the 
possibility at its last meeting to amend that ordinance to prohibit commercial solar 
facilities in the Shoreland Zone, in time for next Town Meeting. In the interim, the 
Planning Board included a new setback, requiring new commercial solar facilities to be 
setback 250 or more feet from the normal high-water line of a “great pond” (ponds 
larger than 10 acres). This would apply to all the Belgrade Lakes, but not to wetlands 
and streams within the Shoreland Zone. 

 
He reminded the Board there is a tight timeline to get this on the November ballot. The 
Planning Board has worked on this over the last year with a lot of effort and many 
meetings in a public forum to arrive at the final language. 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

Mark Chrisos of Summit Ridge Energy stated they have been working on a 65-acre solar 
project for Belgrade but according to the ordinance, they can only cut ten acres or less. 
Other farms in Maine are larger than 10 acres (average 50-60 acres). He felt the 
ordinance was doing harm to the Town due to these restrictions and wondered if there 
could be other variances to allow for larger solar projects. 

 
Craig Alexander, Planning Board member responded to Mark that he is a businessman, 
builder and member of the Planning Board. Ordinances are put in to protect the lakes 
and this ordinance is consistent with other ordinances of the Town (i.e., Shoreland 
Zoning, Subdivision, Commercial) – they are all tough and consistent. 

 
Selectman Rick Damren moved to approve and finalize the amendments to the 
ordinance as presented, seconded by Chair Melanie Jewell, vote 5-0. 

 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Motion to hire and approve the contract with the new Town Manager – Lorna Dee Nichols 
 

Selectman Rick Damren moved to approve the 3-year contract and hire Lorna Dee 
Nichols as Town Manager for the Town of Belgrade, seconded by Selectperson 
Barbara Allen, vote 5-0. 

 
Maine Department of Transportation – Castle Island Road Closure Discussion 
 

Me DOT representatives Tony Beaulieu and Devan Eaton presented a slideshow 
presentation and discussion on the Narrows West Bridge project. 
 
Of concern is the access and detour routes, snowplowing, school bus turn-around areas, 
emergency services access, etc. 
 
After much discussion, it was decided to have the Town Manager set up an on-site 
meeting with Me DOT, the Warren brothers, RSU 18 Transportation Director Lennie 
Goff, the Belgrade Fire Department, Rome Fire Department, Mt. Vernon Fire 
Department and Select Board members from Belgrade, Rome and Mt. Vernon for some 
time the week of September 12. This meeting will give those in attendance a first-hand 
look at the area and what spots are most advantageous for plowing, school bus 
turnarounds and emergency services access so that these decisions can be made 
between all stakeholders. 

 
General Election November 8, 2022, Municipal Ballot Warrant Articles 
 

Commercial Development Review Ordinance 
 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve and add this article to the Warrant for 
November 8, Selectperson Barbara Allen seconded, vote 5-0. 
 
Select Board recommends 5-0 
 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

Maine DOT Belgrade Cooperative Agreement Revised-Belgrade Water System 
Agreement 
 
Selectman Rick Damren moved to approve and add this article to the Warrant for 
November 8, Selectman Dan Newman seconded, vote 5-0. 
 
Select Board recommends 4-1 
 
Road Reserve Account – Budget Overages  
 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve and add this article to the Warrant for 
November 8, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, vote 5-0. 
 
Select Board recommends 5-0 
 
Acceptance of funds from First Responders Memorial Committee & setup a perpetual 
care fund  
 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve and add this article to the Warrant for 
November 8, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, vote 5-0. 
 
Select Board recommends 5-0 
 
Town Clerk Mary Vogel will send out to the Budget Committee for their approval. 
 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to set the Public Hearing date for the Warrant on 
October 4 at 6:30 p.m., Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, vote 5-0. 
 

Request for Proposals – Fuel, Propane & Off-Road Diesel 
 

Paul Nadeau’s recommendation is to wait as prices are dropping, the Town should wait 
to lock in. The number of fuel gallons have been provided to AFC Comfort. The RFP will 
be sent out to those companies included in the past. 
 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to table the RFP until the October 4 meeting with a 3-
week window for the deadline, Selectperson Barbara Allen seconded, vote 5-0. 

 
Code Enforcement Officer – Richard Greenwald - Updates  
 

Richard was not in attendance. Richard has submitted a letter of resignation effective 
September 15 which included a list of pending items: 
 
“The barn at the 7 Lakes Inn has a pending internal plumbing permit. I believe that a 
plumbing line from the barn was tied into the existing septic system. This was done 
without a permit. 
 
Before an internal plumbing permit is issued, that pipe from the barn to septic needs to 
be dug up and inspected. Also, the Owner needs to get a permit for that job and pay 
twice the fees, as it was done unpermitted. If a bedroom is added to the barn, the HHE-



 

5 | P a g e  
 

200 (septic information) needs to be evaluated to see if it can pump an additional ninety 
gallons per day, as is the plumbing code. 
 
Alanna York at 142 Woodland Camp Road put granite stairs into the water with only a 
Permit by Rule from the D.E.P. Additionally, she laid large flag stones on the property 
without a permit. She has since filled out permits for both and will go before the Planning 
Board on 9-15-22. The results of that meeting will determine if her work is all set or if 
there needs to be some corrective action.  
 
I currently have eight shore land permits, two of which are incomplete.” 
 
Abutting landowners Kate Beales and Jan Partridge spoke about issues with the Barn: 
water, septic, parking and commercial permitting. 

 
Abatements 
 

Robert & Sylvia Eppig - $106.12 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Depot Pit LLC - $844.36 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Jonathan & Ruth Bayless - $319.14 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Julie, David, Joseph Oliver - $224.55 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Mark Damren - $ 530.61 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Michael & Juliann Donahue - $2,759.17 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Mary Susan Larenson - $4,841.62 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
Supplementals 
Melissa & William Grousse - $4,841.62 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 
 
 
 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

David & Nancy Mills - $747.47  
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to approve, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, 
vote 4-1 with Selectman Dan Newman abstaining. 

 
Municipal Warrant 
 

Selectperson Barbara Allen moved to approve AP Warrant #100 in the amount of 
$630,103.84, Selectperson Carol Johnson seconded, vote 5-0. 

 
 
TOWN MANAGER REPORT 
 
Updates & Announcements from Interim Town Manager Mary Vogel:  
 

8 Dalton Roof RFP– Follow-up: There are no contracts at this time, the cost for the roof 
repair will be between $15-20,000 which could be taken out of Recreation Reserve. 
Selectman Rick Damren suggested using the remaining balance in the emergency fund 
(estimated at $7,000). 
 
Lease Agreement with Perkins Leasing Company: there are several documents and 
addendums to the lease which the Select Board should review and do a new lease 
agreement either with Perkins or another local company. 
 
Upcoming Budget Process – Budget Committee Meeting: short one person for the 
committee, considering large items for the 2023 budget to be full time CEO, reval, 
snowplow contract, town facility updates, TRIO Sketch. 
 
Road Committee Meeting – Wednesday, September 7, 2022 / 6:30 p.m./ Town Office: 
Mary will attend as the Town Manager has a prior commitment, they may discuss a 
Public Works department as the snowplow contract ends April 2024 and if the Town 
decides to move in that direction, planning should begin now.  
 
The Board would also like to have Jason go look at the chip work done on the Minot Hill 
Road and reach out to the company for warranty work. 
 
State Assessment of Town 
 
School Cost Sharing meeting – there will be a meeting coming up soon. 

 
Chair Melanie Jewell moved to adjourn at 9:11 p.m., Selectperson Carol Johnson 
seconded, vote 5-0. 
 
Upcoming meetings:   Select Board September 20, 6:30 p.m. 
    Planning Board September 22, 6:30 p.m.  
 
Tabled Items:    Bench placement for Mr. Beck 
 
  



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• BENCH REQUEST (Action) 



















From: Daniel MacGlashing
To: Mary Vogel
Cc: Linda.C.Bacon@maine.gov; lbacon75139@roadrunner.com
Subject: Bench Placement
Date: Thursday, August 25, 2022 12:40:10 PM
Attachments: Peninsula park bench.jpg

Mary,
 
Let me know if it needs to come from somewhere else, but the rec board has unanimously
recommended putting the bench in the Peninsula Park. After looking at the intentions of the donor,
the available spaces and overall impact, the decision to move forward with placing it the Peninsula
Park was agreed upon.
 
I have attached a photo of the potential placement, it would be on the point of the park, facing west.
 
Let me know if you would like me to forward their responses.
 
Any reason for delay should fall back on me, as I have had other things on my mind.
 
Thank you,
 
Daniel MacGlashing
Recreation Director
Town Of Belgrade
207-495-3481
 

mailto:recreation@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:townclerk@townofbelgrade.com
mailto:linda.c.bacon@maine.gov
mailto:lbacon75139@roadrunner.com



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• MDOT/Town of Belgrade Water System, 

Review and Approve/Wait (Action) 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Lorna Dee Nichols, Town Manager 

Date: Sept. 15, 2020 

Re: MDOT/Town of Belgrade Water System Contract 

 
If the Board chooses to review and finalize the MEDOT/BELGRADE agreement AFTER 
the November vote, the following is language provided by the Town’s attorney to allow 
for that which would become the warrant article: 

 
 

Shall the Town authorize the Board of Selectmen to enter into a 
cooperative agreement with the Maine Department of Transportation for 
the installation, maintenance, and operation of a community water system 
to remedy the salt-contaminated properties generally bounded by but not 
limited to Route 27, Route 135 and Routes 8/11, such terms and 
conditions of the final agreement subject to review and approval by the 
Board?  

 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 1 of 15 
         

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT  
Between the 

MAINE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION  
and 

The MUNICIPALITY OF BELGRADE 
Regarding Groundwater Chloride Impacts and the  

Installation, Maintenance and Operation of a Community Water System 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into between the Maine Department of Transportation 
(hereafter “MaineDOT”), and the Municipality of Belgrade (the “Municipality”) (individually a 
“Party” or jointly the “Parties”) regarding a partnership initiative between the Parties to mitigate the 
groundwater chloride impacts affecting residential and commercial properties located near Routes 27, 11 
and 135 in Belgrade, Maine.    

 
BACKGROUND 

 
A. Routes 27, 11 and 135 (also known as Cemetery Road) intersect to form a generally triangular area 

as depicted on the map attached hereto as Exhibit A (the “Impact Area”).  The Impact Area 
extends from the westerly side of Route 27 to the northeasterly side of Cemetery Road and the 
southeasterly side of Route 11 and includes specifically the highlighted parcels shown on Exhibit 
A, being an excerpt of Tax Map 7 of the Municipality’s records. 
 

B. MaineDOT and the Municipality each own and operate sand and salt storage facilities located 
within the Impact Area on the northeast side of Cemetery Road (the “Maintenance Facilities” 
collectively).    

 
C. There have been several instances of chloride-related groundwater contamination issues affecting 

the private water supplies of residential and commercial properties located within the Impact Area 
(the “Groundwater Contamination Impacts”).     

 
D. Sources of the Groundwater Contamination Impacts potentially include the Maintenance Facilities 

owned and controlled by both Parties.  Numerous smaller private sources, such as driveways, 
parking lots and previously installed reverse-osmosis water treatment systems, as well as other 
unknown sources have likely contributed to the Groundwater Contamination Impacts, as well. 
 

E. The Parties each have legal responsibilities associated with private water supplies being rendered 
unfit for human consumption as a result of highway construction, reconstruction or maintenance.  
23 M.R.S. § 652(2) establishes MaineDOT’s responsibilities; 23 M.R.S. § 3659 establishes the 
Municipality’s responsibilities.  The two statutes include similar liabilities and obligations to 
resolve associated claims.   
 

F. Given that each Party’s exact contribution to the Groundwater Contamination Impacts is difficult 
to identify, MaineDOT and the Municipality have determined that it is in the public interest to 
jointly implement a permanent resolution to the Groundwater Contamination Impacts through a 
practical mitigation management plan and cost sharing arrangement between the Parties.   
 

G. After thorough reviews of the various impacted properties and resolutions that may be 
implemented, the Parties have jointly determined that currently the most practical solution is to 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 2 of 15 
         

design, install, operate and maintain a Public Water System, as such is defined in 22 M.R.S. § 
2601, to serve the impacted properties as well as those additional properties within the Impact 
Area that may become impacted by chloride in the future (the “Water System”), as further 
outlined in this Agreement.  
 

H. The Parties previously entered into a Memorandum of Agreement dated May 24, 2011 (the “2011 
Agreement”) to establish preliminary cost-sharing and claim investigation measures.  The 2011 
Agreement was limited in scope and did not fully contemplate the extensive Groundwater 
Contamination Impacts that have since been identified, nor did it consider the potential need for a 
public water system and the initial and ongoing expenses associated therewith.    
 

I. The purpose of this Agreement is to 1) replace the 2011 Agreement; 2) set out each Party’s 
responsibilities in establishing, constructing, operating and maintaining the Water System; and 3) 
identifying the cost-sharing arrangements between the Parties in connection with both the Water 
System and private property damages associated with the Groundwater Contamination Impacts.   

 
AGREEMENT 

 
NOW THEREFORE, MaineDOT and the Municipality acknowledge and agree that the forgoing recitals 
are true and correct statements of fact, and further agree as follows:   
 

1. Status of 2011 Agreement:  Upon the execution of this Agreement, the 2011 Agreement is void 
and of no further effect.  All payments due from the Municipality under the terms of the 2011 
Agreement have been paid in full by the Municipality in accordance with the terms thereof.  
 

2. Points of Contact:  Each Party shall assign a Point of Contact to be the direct contact person for 
all purposes associated with the Water System and all aspects of this Agreement.  Appropriate 
contact information for each Point of Contact shall be shared between the Parties as soon as 
practicable.    
 

a. For MaineDOT, the Region Manager for MaineDOT’s Region 2 will act as the Point of 
Contact. As of the effective date of this Agreement, that person is Jamie Andrews;    
 

b. For the Municipality, the Town Manager will act as the Point of Contact.  As of the 
effective date of this Agreement, that person is Interim Town Manager, Mary Vogel.       

 
3. Completed Actions Toward Development of the Water System:  As of the date of this 

Agreement, the following activities have already been completed:  
 

a. The Parties have identified a number of residential and commercial properties within the 
Impact Area presently affected by the Groundwater Contamination Impacts (these 
properties, together with any future properties within the Impact Area identified as having 
been affected by the Groundwater Contamination Impacts,  are hereafter the “Impacted 
Properties”).   
 

i. Impacted Properties presently affected by the Groundwater Contamination 
Impacts as of the effective date of this Agreement and intended to be 
connected to the Water System upon construction completion are identified 
on Exhibit A as follows:  lots 42, 53 (Municipal Cemetery), 55, 55-A, 55-C, 
55-E, 55-F, 55-G, 58, 59-A, 59-B, 62, and 63. Notwithstanding the 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 3 of 15 
         

depiction of highlighted parcels on Exhibit A, the Parties agree to also 
recognize lot 62A as a presently affected Impacted Property for the purpose 
of this Agreement and will share equally in the costs associated with 
resolving that owner’s claim if it is determined to be impractical to 
physically connect lot 62A to the Water System.  
 

ii. Impacted Property not presently affected by Groundwater Contamination 
Impacts  but still intend to be connected to the Water System upon 
construction completion is identified on Exhibit A as follows:   lot 45 (the 
“Municipal and MaineDOT Salt Facilities”).   
 

iii. Impacted Properties not included in subsection i. and ii. above are eligible to 
be connected to the Water System in the future on a case-by-case basis if 
they become affected by Groundwater Contamination Impacts, subject to 
the Water System’s sufficient capacity to handle the additional demand 
created by the added property.   

 
b. MaineDOT has hired Ransom Engineering (“Ransom”) to drill and evaluate a test well 

(the “Community Well”) to serve the Impacted Properties.  The Community Well is 
located within MaineDOT’s Maintenance Facility lot and is indicated on Exhibit A within 
lot 45 .  Ransom’s total costs associated with the installation, testing and permitting of the 
Community Well are $ 109,821.88 (the “Community Well Installation, Testing and 
Permitting Costs”). The Community Well currently meets all appropriate water quality 
standards, has sufficient capacity to serve the Impacted Properties, and the Parties 
anticipate that the Community Well will continue to have appropriate quality and capacity 
in the foreseeable future.   

 
c. Ransom, at MaineDOT’s direction, has also developed a cost estimate to design and install 

the necessary pumps, piping, treatment and distribution system to distribute water from the 
Community Well to the Impacted Properties (the “Distribution System”).  The 
Community Well, together with the Distribution System, hereafter collectively constitute 
the “Water System” for the purpose of this Agreement.  Ransom’s recently updated cost 
estimate is approximately $3,000,000.00 (the “Distribution System Design and 
Installation Estimate”).   The Distribution System Design and Installation Estimate 
includes individual connections to the Impacted Properties identified in Sections 3.a.i and ii 
(the “Present Connections”).    

 
d. MaineDOT has applied to the Maine Drinking Water Program (“DWP”) for authorization 

to rely on the Community Well to supply a Public Water System serving the Impacted 
Properties.  DWP has issued preliminary approval to MaineDOT, pending DWP’s review 
and approval of the Distribution System.  DWP’s records identify the proposed Water 
System as “Belgrade DOT” and DWP has assigned a Public Water System identification 
number of ME0092729.  The Municipality will assume operation and maintenance 
responsibility for the Public Water System only after the Water System and source water 
protection plan have has been approved by the State Drinking Water ProgramDWP, the 
source water protection plan has been approved by the Maine Department of 
Environmental Protection- and the Water System has been constructed pursuant to Section 
6 of this Agreement. 

 
4. Municipality’s Establishment of a Water Utility: 

Commented [PT1]: Run by Dwight – ok unless Dwight has 
concerns.  

Commented [DD2R1]: Source Water Protection Plans are part 
of the Drinking water program, not MDEP. 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 4 of 15 
         

 
a. In preparation for the Municipality’s assumption of ongoing Water System operation and 

maintenance responsibilities as further set out in Section 6 of this Agreement, the 
Municipality has taken the necessary step of establishing a legislatively approved charter 
creating the Belgrade Water District to carry out such responsibilities on the Municipality’s 
behalf over a geographic territory identical to the Impact Area depicted on Exhibit A.   The 
creation of the Belgrade Water District was ratified by the Municipality’s voters in March 
of 2022.   It is the Parties’ intent that, in addition to the municipal ratification of the 
Belgrade Water District, this Agreement shall be executed before a project to construct the 
Distribution System is put out to bid by MaineDOT,  and that this Agreement has been 
drafted with the goal that the Distribution System construction will begin in early 2023, 
provided such Agreement execution has occurred no later than November 3130, 2022.  
The Parties further agree to seek a legislative amendment to the defined area of the 
Belgrade Water District to include the presently affected Impacted Property identified as 
Lot 62A if it becomes apparent that the appropriate resolution to that lot’s circumstance is 
to connect it to the Water System.     
 

b. The Parties agree that, if the Municipality is unable to secure the necessary municipal 
approval to enter into this Agreement, this Agreement shall be of not force and effect and 
the Parties will proceed with an alternate means of resolving the Groundwater 
Contamination Impacts, up to and including purchase of the Impacted Properties and 
relocation of affected occupants with the Parties sharing equally in all such costs.   
 

c. Upon execution of this Agreement and in parallel with the Distribution System being 
designed, the Municipality will promptly take all necessary remaining measures to ensure 
that the Belgrade Water District is functioning as a legally compliant water utility (the 
“Water Utility”) under the laws and regulations of the Public Utilities Commission (the 
“PUC”), including without limitation appointing trustees, securing all necessary 
permits/approvals and ensuring that the designed Water System is approved by the PUC 
before the Distribution System construction commences.  The Municipality agrees to 
diligently pursue the necessary permits/approvals on a schedule that will allow the 
construction to commence in spring 2023 as planned to minimize additional construction 
cost increases.  The Water Utility will be expected to actively participate in the oversight of 
the Distribution System construction with MaineDOT’s selected contractor.   
 

d. The development of the Water Utility requirements shall be at the discretion of the 
Municipality, provided that it complies with all applicable Maine laws governing the 
formation of water utilities and construction of associated water system infrastructure in the 
State of Maine and that either the Municipality or the established Water Utility on the 
Municipality’s behalf is authorized to assume ownership of and all responsibility for the 
completed Water System when construction is complete and the Water System is put into 
service.    

 
e. Once the Water Utility is legally empowered to assume the Municipality’s obligations 

under this Agreement, this Agreement may be amended to add the Water Utility as a 
Party to this Agreement, at which time the Belgrade Water District will assume the role 
of Water Utility for the purpose of this Agreement.  Absent such amendment, all 
references to the Water Utility in this Agreement shall refer to the Municipality and the 
terms “Municipality” and “Water Utility” shall be interchangeable until such 
amendment occurs.   

Commented [PT3]: While we originally did not think that the 
water utility would fall under the jurisdiction of the PUC, I’m not 
sure that is still the case, since they will be charging a fee.  This 
process has been a bit of a moving target.  When I first drafted this 
agreement, I was under the impression that they did not meet the 
definition of a water utility under PUC laws because they were not 
going to charge the users.  Now that it’s been clarified that they do 
intend to charge, I’m concerned that they now meet the definition of 
a “water utility” and may need additional PUC approval.  They 
definitely will need PUC approval for rate establishment.  In 
addition, 35-A sec. 6102 further requires that, before commencing 
construction of the water line, the water utility must file the plans 
and specs with the PUC for approval.  If this step is, in fact, 
required, this will need to happen before we go out to bid.   
 
A ”water district” is created by Private and Special Law to perform 
the functions of a “water utility” (35-A sec. 6101).  A “water 
utility”, by definition, operates water works for compensation (35-A 
sec. 102).   
 
 

Commented [PT4R3]: We need the town to investigate this 
question and determine whether PUC involvement will be needed.   



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 5 of 15 
         

 
5. Project Design, Construction, and Implementation: 

 
a. Scope of Work and Project Contract:   

 
i. Subject to municipal execution of this Agreement and PUC’s requisite approval, if 

needed, of the submitted plans and specifications of the designed Distribution 
System, MaineDOT shall procure and administer a contract to construct the 
Distribution System, connect the Distribution System to the Community Well, and 
connect the completed Water System to the Impacted Properties currently identified 
by the Parties (the “Project”) with the intention that construction will begin in early 
2023 and be completed in _____.  approximately one construction season.  
Implementation of this work shall be completed in accordance with the plans and 
specifications jointly approved by MaineDOT, the Water Utility and PUC, if 
deemed necessary. 
 

1. Prior to MaineDOT’s solicitation of bids to construction the Project, the 
MunicipalityWater Utility, and its technical advisor, if any, shall be 
provided adequate opportunity to review and comment on the water system 
design.  The water system design shall include water usage meters of a 
design and operation acceptable to the Town or Water Utility for each 
service connection., provided that the Water Utility shall pay to MaineDOT 
the cost difference for any requested meter upgrades that exceed those 
necessary to meet industry standards.   

 
ii. MaineDOT shall be the sole administrator of the Project contract and will pay all 

Project costs, subject to the Parties’ cost sharing arrangements set out in the Cost 
Sharing and Invoicing section herein.    

 
iii. MaineDOT shall be responsible for applying for and complying with all applicable 

permitting requirements associated with Project construction, except that the Water 
Utility shall have secured any necessary approvals from the PUC and applied for 
and been granted the necessary Location Permit from MaineDOT in accordance 
with the terms of 35-A M.R.S. ch 25 and MaineDOT’s Utility Accommodation 
Rules (the “Location Permit”).   

 
iv. Subject to MaineDOT’s approval of the Location Permit, the Distribution System 

will be installed within the limits of the highway rights of way to eliminate the 
Parties’ need to acquire additional property rights from abutting landowners.   

 
v. Changes to Project Scope.  MaineDOT will consult with the Municipality and the 

Water Utility before implementing any substantive adjustments to the Project 
scope.  Any such changes shall be in writing and mutually agreed upon by all 
Parties to this Agreement, as such may be amended.   

 
vi. MaineDOT shall ensure that the Project is constructed in accordance with the 

Project contract.   
 

vii. The Water Utility may inspect the Project work upon reasonable notice to 
MaineDOT.  Costs for such inspections shall be at the Municipality’s sole expense. 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 6 of 15 
         

 
vii.viii. MaineDOT shall ensure that the Water System design engineer conducts regular 

quality control inspections of all work performed by the construction contractor and 
its subcontractors to ensure adherence to the pProject design specifications and 
change orders, including but not limited to, the proper installation of water mains 
and service connections, water main seals, pump station construction, and pump 
and electronic controls installation.  The results of these inspections shall be 
documented and provided to the Town Municipality or Water Utility upon request.  
The Town Municipality and Water Utility reserves the right to hire at their expense 
a Maine professional engineer to perform supplemental quality control inspections 
and provide input for the Project design engineer and construction contractor’s 
consideration, with final determinations of compliance with appropriate industry 
standards being at the sole discretion of the Project design engineer and contractor.  
MaineDOT will assure that its wWater sSystem design engineer and construction 
contractor will cooperate and share design and construction information with the 
Town Municipality or Water Utility inspector upon request. 
 

b. Individual Service Lines to Impacted Properties:  Prior to MaineDOT’s solicitation of bids 
to construct the Project, MaineDOT shall secure statements from the owners of each 
Impacted Property (the “Impacted Property Owners”) indicating that they intend to 
connect to the Water System once it is operational and that they will grant the necessary 
temporary access rights to allow for the installation and connection. If a sufficient number 
of Impacted Property Owners fail to state an intention to connect to the Water System, the 
Parties reserve the right to forego constructing the Distribution System and, in such event, 
shall revisit the terms of this Agreement.     

 
i. Individual service lines to each of the Present Connections (the “Service Line(s)”) 

will be installed as part of the Distribution System with connection points being 
installed as close as possible to the edge of the highway right of way limits.  All 
portions of Service Lines installed outside of the highway right of way and within 
the boundaries of the Impacted Properties shall be owned by the Impacted Property 
Owner being served.   
 

ii. Each Impacted Property Owner  will be required to grant temporary access rights 
for all purposes necessary to allow Project contractors to install and connect the 
Service Line from the installed water main connection point to the Impacted 
Property’s existing plumbing system.   

 
iii.  Impacted Property Owners will be required to enter into a service contract with the 

Water Utility for the provision of public water serving the Impacted Property before 
that property’s associated Service Line is made active.   

 
iv. Subject to the exceptions set out below and upon connection of each Service Line, 

MaineDOT or its contractor will fill in and abandon the Impacted Property’s 
chloride-contaminated groundwater well, as required by Maine law, at no cost to 
the Impacted Property Owner (the “Groundwater Well Abandonment”).  In 
addition to the temporary access rights conveyed for installation of the Service 
Lines, each Impacted Property Owner will be required to grant temporary access 
rights for all purposes necessary to perform Groundwater Well Abandonment 
activities.  Costs associated with Groundwater Well Abandonment shall be paid 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 7 of 15 
         

upfront by MaineDOT, subject to the Parties’ cost sharing arrangements set out in 
the Cost Sharing and Invoicing section herein.    

 
v. MaineDOT shall ensure that, upon completion of all necessary installations, 

connections and Groundwater Well Abandonment activities performed by or on 
behalf of MaineDOT in connection with the Project, all disturbed property will be 
restored, including any necessary re-grading or re-seeding of grass, to return the 
Impacted Property to a condition similar to that which exists prior to the work being 
implemented.  Such costs shall be a component of the Groundwater Well 
Abandonment costs; 

 
vi. MaineDOT will contact each affected Impacted Property Owner prior to the onset 

of Project construction to complete the necessary documentation involving 
temporary access rights.  Temporary access rights for Service Line installation and 
Groundwater Well Abandonment shall be incorporated into one single access 
document for each Impacted Property as appropriate.  MaineDOT shall prepare 
such documentation at its sole expense.   

   
c. Dedicated Groundwater Monitoring Wells. 

 
Notwithstanding the Groundwater Well Abandonment process outlined above, and subject 
to prior approval by the Department of Environmental ProtectionDEP, the Parties shall 
work together to identify a reasonable number of affected groundwater wells to leave in 
place, disconnected from associated Impacted Properties but not formally abandoned, to 
use as future monitoring wells, allowing the Municipality to periodically monitor the 
ongoing conditions of the groundwater over time.  

 
d. Municipal Cooperation During Project Construction. 

 
i. The Municipality agrees that, to the extent that MaineDOT and its Project 

contractors are subject to any local ordinances, the Municipality shall promote, in 
good faith, cooperation on the part of any local board, committee, commission, or 
other administrative body with jurisdiction over any applicable local ordinance with 
MaineDOT regarding pursuit or execution of the Project.  Nothwithstanding any 
Municipal Ordinance to the contrary, the Municipality further agrees not to charge 
MaineDOT or its Project contractors for any necessary municipal  inspections 
and/or permits related to the Project.  

 
ii. The Municipality agrees to alter, move, relocate or remove, or cause to be, at no 

cost to the Project, any municipal property, including all fixtures, facilities or 
monuments, located on, under or above the ground, as necessary to permit 
construction of the Project, that has not otherwise been provided for during the 
development of the Project.  Any work necessary to do so during the period of 
construction shall be coordinated with the Project contractor. 

 
iii. To the extent necessary to permit construction of the Project, the Municipality will, 

at no cost to the Project, assure proper adjustment, relocation, or repair of any 
portion of a utility service, whether above or below ground, that is located within 
the limits of the highway right-of-way and connected to any municipal utility.  The 

Commented [DD5]: DEP has guidance on well abandonment; 
nothing that they would approve on this initiative. 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 8 of 15 
         

Municipality agrees to hold MaineDOT harmless from any claims for damages 
occurring as a result thereof. 

 
iv. The Municipality agrees that during and after construction it will apply the 

requirements of the most recent version of MaineDOT’s “Utility Accommodation 
Rules” as the minimum guidelines, notwithstanding any municipal rules that are 
more lenient. 

 
v. Traffic Control.  The Municipality agrees to allow the Project contractor to control 

all traffic through Project work areas in accordance with the traffic control plan 
approved by MaineDOT.  The development of the Traffic Control Plan will follow 
the process outlined below: 

 
a. MaineDOT’s Project Manager will discuss the Traffic Control Plan with the 

Municipality (scope, limits, day or night work, work window, etc.) as soon 
as practicable. 
 

b. The Municipality will comment on any concerns/issues related to the Traffic 
Control Plan within two (2) weeks of receipt. 

 
c. MaineDOT will address the Municipality’s concerns where practical, but 

MaineDOT’s engineering judgment will prevail where there are any 
disagreements. 

 
6. Ongoing Operation and Maintenance of Completed Water System:  

 
a. Bill of Sale and Location Permit.  Upon completion of the DWP and DEP- approved and 

constructed Water System, connection of all Service Lines, and delivery by the 
Municipality/Water Utility to MaineDOT of Water Supply Settlements (as further defined 
below) from each of the Impacted Property Owners that have entered into service contracts, 
MaineDOT will convey, and the Water Utility shall accept, ownership of the Water System 
to the Water Utility via a bill of sale for the infrastructure, a  deeded easement for the 
Community Well location and any associated infrastructure located on MaineDOT 
property,  and a Location Permit allowing the Water System to continue to occupy the 
highway rights of way in accordance with the terms of MaineDOT’s Utility 
Accommodation Rules.  The Location Permit will include language representing that the 
Municipality shall not be required to participate in future costs of relocating the Water 
System, or any portions thereof, if such relocation becomes necessary due to MaineDOT’s 
future highway construction or reconstruction needs.   
 

b. Upon completion of the DWP and DEP-approved and constructed Water System and 
connection of all Service Lines, the Municipality or Water Utility shall assume all 
responsibilities for the Water System’s ongoing operation and maintenance at its sole 
expense (the “Water System Operation and Maintenance”) including without limitation 
all associated fees, costs, repairs and replacements that are not subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement’s Contingency provisions below.  DWP has estimated the 
annual expense associated with the Water System Operation and Maintenance to be 
approximately $36,000 in present value.  Water System Operation and Maintenance shall 
include compliance with any well head protection plan required by the DWP and all 
applicable state and local laws, rules and regulations governing the Water System.   

Commented [DD6]: DEP is not part of the Drinking Water 
Approval Process. 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 9 of 15 
         

 
i. Contingencies.  The Parties agree that, should the Community Well become 

contaminated with chloride at concentrations above MaineDOT’s current action 
level of x250 mg/l for a period of 12three (3) consecutive monthssampling rounds 
associated with the Parties’ on-going operation of the Maintenance Facilities, the 
Parties shall revisit the terms of this Agreement to jointly determine how best to 
resolve such contamination or to otherwise address the claims of Impacted 
Properties that cannot be served by the Community Well.   

 
b.c. The Municipality shall ensure that the Water System Operation and Maintenance is 

implemented in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations including 
without limitation 22 M.R.S. Ch. 601 - Water for Human Consumption, and the State of 
Maine Board of Licensure of Water System Operators rules at 90-429 C.M.R. ch. 1, and 
that the Water System is maintained in such a manner as necessary to preserve the use and 
function thereof for the expected period of the Water System’s normal useful life as 
determined by accepted engineering and/or industry standards.  To the extent any warranty 
exists for the Water System, said warranty shall be first relied on by the Municipality to 
address necessary maintenance and/or repairs.  The Municipality agrees to maintain the 
Water System with equipment technology equal to or greater than that which has been 
installed in connection with the Project. 

 
c.d. The Municipality shall ensure that all Impacted Properties within the limits of the Impact 

Area, are allowed to connect to the Water System and that there shall be no charge to the 
Impacted Property Owner for the cost of physically connecting such property to the Water 
System.  At the Municipality’s discretion, it may take appropriate steps to enact necessary 
local ordinances to limit the properties that are permitted to connect to the Water System, 
provided that all Impacted Properties in the Impact Area are permitted to connect thereto.   

 
d.e. The Water Utility may, subject to PUC approval if required, develop a reasonable rate 

schedule for water usage commensurate with other public water utilities of similar size and 
scope to offset future maintenance costs.  

 
e.f. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Municipality’s obligation 

to allow all Impacted Properties to connect to the Water System is conditioned on the 
Water System’s capacity to adequately serve additional users.  In the event the Parties 
become aware that the Water System can no longer serve additional Impacted Properties, 
the Parties shall revisit the terms of this Agreement to jointly determine how best to expand 
the capacity of the Water System or to otherwise address the claims of Impacted Properties 
that cannot be served by the Water System.     

 
7. Investigation and Settlement of Current and Future Well Claims: 

 
a. MaineDOT will continue to work with currently identified Impacted Properties to inform 

property owners of the Parties’ plan to install, operate and maintain the Water System.   
 

b. Settlement Negotiations.   
 
Each Impacted Owner has filed a claim against MaineDOT seeking: 1) damages caused by 
groundwater well contamination affecting their property, and 2) a resolution resulting in 

Commented [PT7]: Dwight, please review. 

Commented [DD8R7]: Not sure we need the Contingency 
section….if the well, or any well in the area exceed the 250 
threshold, the owner has the right to file a well claim.  Essentially 
the Town can file a claim against us if there is high chloride levels.  
Our well claim policy uses three sampling rounds to confirm the 
exceedance – not 12 months.   



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 10 of 15 
         

the provision of a clean water supply (collectively, the “Well Claim”).  For the purposes of 
this Agreement, each Well Claim is separated into two components:  the “Water Supply 
Component” requiring that clean water be supplied to the Impacted property; and the 
“Personal Property and Fixtures Component” addressing physical damage to the 
personal property and fixtures associated with the Impacted Property. 

 
i. Prior to activating a connected Service Line, the Municipality/Water Utility shall 

ensure that the Impacted Property Owner has signed a settlement agreement 
releasing MaineDOT and the Municipality from the Water Supply Component of 
the owner’s Well Claim (the “Water Supply Settlement”).  MaineDOT will 
provide the Municipality with the form of settlement agreement required for 
execution.  

 
ii. Once the Impacted Properties have been connected to the Water System, 

MaineDOT will ask each Impacted Property Owner to provide a cost summary 
supporting the Personal Property and Fixtures Component of their Well Claim, 
including, for example, piping, tanks, pumps, heating systems or other related 
fixtures that have been damaged as a result of the Groundwater Contamination 
Impacts.  MaineDOT will assess the validity of each claim and will strive to 
negotiate a final settlement of the Personal Property and Fixtures Component of 
each Impacted Property Owner’s Well Claim (the “Personal Property and 
Fixtures Settlement”).  Settlement agreements will include a release of both 
MaineDOT and the Municipality.  Negotiated settlement amounts will be paid by 
MaineDOT up front, subject to the Parties’ cost sharing arrangements set out in the 
Cost Sharing and Invoicing section herein.    

 
c. If an Impacted Property is confirmed to experience damage to or failure of the personal 

property and/or fixtures described above that requires repair or replacement prior to the 
Water System being operational, the Parties will jointly investigate such damages and will 
share in all costs incurred to appropriately repair or replace the damaged property or fixture 
(the “Emergency Repairs”).  Impacted Property Owners affected by Emergency Repairs 
will not be asked to settle their Well Claim until the Water System is installed and 
connected, at which time such claim will be handled in accordance with the Settlement 
Negotiations subsection included above.   

 
d. State Claims Referrals.  If an Impacted Property Owner 1) refuses to be connected to the 

Water System; 2) refuses to enter into a Water Supply Settlement; or 3) if a Personal 
Property and Fixtures Settlement cannot be reached with an Impacted Property Owner once 
connected to the Water System, the unsettled party will be asked to assign its claim against 
the Municipality to MaineDOT, and MaineDOT will refer the claim against MaineDOT to 
the State Claims Commission for a determination of cause and assessment of damages (the 
“SCC Damage Award”).  SCC Damage Awards will be paid by MaineDOT up front, 
subject to the Parties’ cost sharing arrangements set out in the Cost Sharing and Invoicing 
section herein.    

 
e. Investigation of New Claims.  New claims from Impacted Properties not already identified 

as of the date of this Agreement shall be investigated by MaineDOT and results reported to 
the Municipality.  If the claim is determined by MaineDOT to be associated with the 
Groundwater Contamination Impacts, the Municipality shall arrange for the Impacted 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 11 of 15 
         

Property to be connected to the Water System at the Municipality’s cost (the “Future 
Connection Costs”) subject to the Parties’ cost sharing arrangements set out in the Cost 
Sharing and Invoicing section herein.   Final resolution of the newly identified Impacted 
Property will then be managed in accordance with the process set out in the Settlement 
Negotiations and State Claims Referrals sections outlined above.   

 
f. Release of Municipality from Claims.  Upon the Municipality’s payment to MaineDOT of 

its share of each Impacted Property Owner’s Personal Property and Fixtures Settlement or 
SCC Damage Award, as applicable, and satisfaction of all Municipality and Water Utility 
obligations set out in this Agreement, cost sharing or otherwise, MaineDOT hereby 
releases the Municipality from all claims, damages and causes of action associated with the 
Groundwater Contamination Impacts that are covered by the Water Supply Settlement, 
Personal Property and Fixtures Settlement or SCC Damage Award for that particular 
Impacted Property.   

 
8. Project Cost Sharing and Invoicing:   

 
a. Allocation of Costs.  The Parties agree to allocate all costs associated with the 

Groundwater Contamination Impacts as follows:  
 

i. MaineDOT shall pay all actual costs incurred in connection with the Distribution 
System Design and Installation Estimate (currently estimated at $3,000,000.00);  

 
ii. The Municipality shall pay all actual costs incurred in connection with the ongoing 

Water System Operation and Maintenance (currently estimated at $36,000 per year, 
present value as of the date of this Agreement), subject to the Municipality’s right 
to charge a reasonable water usage fee, as described above, to offset these costs;  

 
iii. The Parties shall each pay fifty percent (50%) of all actual costs incurred in 

connection with the following;   
 

1. Community Well Installation, Testing and Permitting Costs, documented at 
a total of $109,821.88; 

2. Groundwater Well Abandonment costs (generally estimated at $3,000 - 
$3,500 per well); 

3. Personal Property and Fixtures Settlements; 
4. SCC Damage Awards; 
5. Emergency Repairs; and  
6. Future Connection Costs. 

 
iv. All in-house costs incurred by each Party’s staff in connection with the 

Groundwater Contamination Impacts, including but not limited to design review, 
construction oversight, investigations and administrative processing, shall be the 
responsibility of each individual Party and not applied against either Party’s 
allocations as set out above.  

 
b. Invoicing and Payment Schedule.   

 
i. The Parties acknowledge that the Municipality has already been invoiced for and 

paid to MaineDOT the sum of $21,310.00, which is applied against the 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 12 of 15 
         

Municipality’s 50% share of the Community Well Installation, Testing and 
Permitting Costs;  
 

ii. Immediately upon execution of this Agreement, MaineDOT will invoice the 
Municipality for its remaining share of the  Community Well Installation, Testing 
and Permitting Costs, which equals $33,600.94;  

 
iii. Immediately upon execution of this Agreement, and intermittently as Emergency 

Repairs are performed prior to the Water System being completed, the Parties will 
invoice one another, as applicable, for any outstanding share of Emergency Repairs 
that either Party may have incurred.   
 

iv. Once the Water System is completely constructed and installed, MaineDOT shall 
invoice the Municipality on a quarterly basis for its share of costs incurred to date 
in connection with 1) Groundwater Well Abandonment; 2) Personal Property and 
Fixtures Settlements; and 3) SCC Damage Awards.  MaineDOT’s share of any 
Future Connection Costs covered by the Water Utility at the time of connection will 
be deducted from the amount invoiced to the Municipality. 

 
1. The initial invoice will include all costs incurred to date in these categories;  

 
2. Subsequent quarterly invoices will reflect costs incurred in these categories 

during that particular quarter.   
 

v. Each invoice submitted will describe the completed work and itemize the associated 
costs included therein.  The invoicing Party will provide supporting documentation 
to the other Party upon request. 

 
vi. Each invoice shall be due and payable upon 30 days of the invoiced Party’s receipt 

thereof.   
 

9. Financial Obligations, Termination and Early-Termination Rights:   
 

a. Obligation of MaineDOT Funds.  Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, the 
Municipality acknowledges and agrees that, although the execution of this Agreement by 
MaineDOT manifests its intent to honor its terms and to seek funding to fulfill any obligations 
arising hereunder, by law any such obligations are subject to available budgetary 
appropriations by the Maine Legislature and do not create any obligation on behalf of 
MaineDOT in excess of such appropriations. 
 

b. Obligation of Municipality Funds. Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, 
MaineDOT acknowledges and agrees that, although the execution of this Agreement by the 
Municipality manifests its intent to honor its terms and to seek funding to fulfill any 
obligations arising hereunder, by law any such obligations are subject to available budgetary 
appropriations by the Municipality’s governing authorities and, therefore, this Agreement does 
not create any obligation on behalf of the Municipality in excess of such appropriations. 

 
c. Each Party hereby agrees to diligently pursue the necessary funding to satisfy its respective 

obligations arising hereunder.  If either Party is unable to satisfy its respective obligations, the 
other Party shall have the right to terminate or renegotiate the terms of this Agreement.   



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 13 of 15 
         

 
d. Either Party may postpone, suspend, abandon or otherwise terminate this Agreement upon 

thirty (30) days written notice to the other Party as the result of any failure by the other Party to 
perform any of the services required under this Agreement to the terminating Party’s 
satisfaction.  In no event shall any such action be deemed a breach of contract.   

 
e. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual written agreement of all Parties, 

provided that such written agreement shall address the allocation between the Parties of any 
costs, expenses, penalties and/or liabilities expended, committed or imposed in connection with 
the Project and any Project contracts awarded as of such date of termination.   

 
f. Prior to MaineDOT awarding a contract to construct and install the Water System, if estimates 

or actual bid prices for such construction and installation exceed the Distribution System 
Design and Installation Cost Estimate (i.e., $3,000,000.00) by more than thirty percent (30%), 
MaineDOT reserves the right to postpone, suspend, abandon or otherwise terminate or 
renegotiate the terms of this Agreement.  In such event, each Party shall pay its share of any 
costs, expenses, penalties and/or liabilities expended, committed or imposed in connection with 
the Project and any Project contracts awarded as of such date of termination.   

 
g. In the event of termination, all provisions of this Agreement shall become null and void except 

for any outstanding financial obligations for costs or liabilities already incurred or obligated, as 
well as those provisions that by their very nature are intended to survive. 

 
h. Unless this Agreement is terminated early in accordance with the provisions set out above, all 

provisions of this Agreement except those associated with the Municipality’s ongoing Water 
System Operation and Maintenance obligations and those that by their very nature are 
intended to survive, shall expire upon final collection and/or payment of all outstanding 
invoices, provided that no new Impacted Properties have been identified within the Impact 
Area for a period of ten (10) years.   

 
10. Miscellaneous Provisions: 

 
a. Municipal Authority.  The Municipality represents that it has received all necessary approvals 

or authorizations by its governing authorities to enter into this Agreement and fulfill the 
Municipality’s obligations outlined herein.   
 

b. The Parties agree to: comply with and abide by all applicable state and federal laws, statutes, 
rules, regulations, standards and guidelines, including the MUTCD and OSHA standards, and 
all Agreement provisions; avoid hindering each other’s performance; fulfill all obligations 
diligently; and cooperate in achievement of the intent of this Agreement. 
 

c. The Parties shall require any third party or other entity providing any service or work on the 
Water System to (a) carry liability insurance commensurate with the risk of the activity and (b) 
to indemnify and defend both MaineDOT and the Municipality and hold them harmless from 
claims. .  The duty to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless shall extend to the State of Maine, 
its officers, agents and employees and the Municipality, its officials, employees, agents, 
consultants or contractors, and shall cover all claims, suits or liabilities arising from any 
negligent or wrongful act, error or omission by said third party or entity.  Nothing herein shall 
waive any defense, immunity or limitation of liability that may be available to either party 
under the Maine Tort Claims Act (14 M.R.S. § 8101 et seq.) or any other privileges or 



REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 14 of 15 
         

immunities provided by law.  Any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary 
notwithstanding, this provision shall survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

 
d. State of Maine’s Rights of Set-Off.  MaineDOT shall have all of its common law, equitable 

and statutory rights of set-off.  These rights shall include, but not be limited to, the State of 
Maine’s option to withhold for the purposes of set-off monies due the Municipality under a 
specific project contract up to any amounts due and owed to MaineDOT with regard to this 
Agreement, and any other agreement/contract with any State of Maine department or agency, 
including any agreement/contract for a term commencing prior to the term of this Agreement, 
plus any amounts due and owed to the State of Maine for any reason including without 
limitation, tax delinquencies, fee delinquencies or monetary penalties relative thereto.  
MaineDOT shall exercise its set-off rights in accordance with normal State practices including, 
in cases of set-off pursuant to an audit, the finalization of such audit by MaineDOT, its 
representatives, or the State Controller.  When applicable, MaineDOT reserves the right to 
withhold or reduce future Local Road Assistance payments to the Municipality for purposes of 
set-off to recover the amount owed.   
 

e. Assignment.  No assignment of this Agreement is contemplated, and in no event shall any 
assignment be made without both Parties’ express written permission. 

 
f. Notice.  Any communications, requests or notices required or appropriate to be given under 

this Agreement shall be in writing and may be sent via email which shall satisfy the delivery 
requirements of this section through express acknowledgement of receipt by the receiving 
Party.  Alternatively, communications can be mailed via U.S. Mail, Certified or Registered, 
Return Receipt Requested or sent via a recognized commercial carrier, such as but not limited 
to Federal Express, that requires a return receipt delivered to the sending party.  Said 
communications, requests or notices shall be sent to the other Party as follows: 

 
   MaineDOT:   Maine Department of Transportation 
      Region 2 Office 
      ___________________________ 
      ___________________________ 
      Augusta, ME04333-0016 
      Attn.:  Jamie Andrews 
      Email: jamie.andrews@maine.gov 

    
    Municipality: Town of Belgrade 
      990 Augusta Rd 
      Belgrade, ME  04917 
      Attn.:  ________Town Manager 
      Email:  townmanager@townofbelgrade.com 
 

g. Counterparts and Electronic Signatures.  This Agreement may be implemented in one or more 
counterparts, each of which will be deemed to be an original copy and all of which, when taken 
together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same Agreement, and will be effective when 
counterparts have been signed by each of the Parties and delivered to the other Parties.  Each 
Party agrees that this Agreement and any other documents to be executed in connection 
herewith may be electronically signed and that any electronic signatures appearing on this 

mailto:andrew.w.lathe@maine.gov
mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com


REVISED 09-01-22  in response to TOWN REDLINES of 8-26-22 

Page 15 of 15 
         

Agreement or the associated documents are the same as handwritten signatures for the 
purposes of validity, enforceability and admissibility.   

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement in duplicate, effective on 
the day and date last signed below.  
 
      MAINE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 
Date: _______________________  By: ___________________________________ 

David Bernhardt 
Director, Bureau of Maintenance and Operations 
Duly authorized 

 
 
 
      MUNICIPALITY OF BELGRADE 
 
Date: _______________________  By: ___________________________________ 

Print name:  ____________________________ 
Its ____________________________________ 
Duly authorized 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• MINOT HILL ROAD CHIP SEALING (Action) 





















 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• TOWN OFFICE HOURS (Action) 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Lorna Dee Nichols, Town Manager 

Date: Sept. 15, 2020 

Re: Town Office Hours 

 
We would like to respectfully request the Board consider changing the closing time on 
Thursday’s from 7 p.m. to 6 p.m. 
 
Activity reports generated from July to September indicate extremely low to no activity 
after 6 p.m. 
 
As we work to hire a new Code Enforcement Officer (this position adds one person to 
the two-person shift from 4:30-7 p.m.), front office staff will be adjusting their hours or 
working overtime to ensure the Thursday shift will be covered. With such low activity 
after 6 p.m., it allows staff to get home a little earlier – especially with the upcoming 
winter months. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• DALTON PROPERTY UPDATES (Action) 



Memo 
To: Lorna Lee Nichols, Town Manager 

From: Cory Alexander, Facility Maint. Director 

Date: 9/16/2022 

Re: 8 Dalton Ln 

Below is a list of items that need to be repaired at 8 Dalton Lane. 

Plumbing/Heating 

• New lavatory faucet and rehang kitchen drain line. $600.00 
• Modine Heater and installation $ 2,650.00 
• Oil tank replacement $ 3,040.00 
• Sump pump and installation $935.00 
• Heat pump hot water tank. $1,800 

Total Cost $9,025.00 
Electrical  

• Install smoke detectors in all rooms 
• Install smoke/CO detectors on each floor 
• Install propane detectors on all floors 
• Make all outside outlets GFCI protected 
• Make basement outlets GFCI protected 
• Install new light fixture in bedroom.  (Town Supplied) 

Total Cost $1,460.00 
Roofing 

• Strip and repair roof deck and shingle. 
Total Cost $38,000 
Also needed  

• The attic has bats and rodents and should have an exclusion after the roof 
is completed if we still find signs of activity. 

• Attic insulation is also contaminated with bat and rodent droppings. Plus, it 
is not adequate with only about an R22 and should be at least an R38. 

The chimney has been recapped, flashed and relined and is ready for roof. 

 

 



GR Roofing LLC 
14 Coffin Avenue, PO Box 3697, Brewer, ME 04412                                       
Office: (207) 262-5818 Cell: (207) 478-1582 Fax: (207) 262-5819     
E-mail: ericday@gwi.net              

 
 

August 15, 2022 

Attn: Lorna Nichols 
Project: 8 Dalton Road 
Belgrade, ME 04917 

 

We are pleased to quote you our prices for the above referenced project as follows: 

Install New Asphalt Shingle Roof (approx. 4300 sqft)-          $38,000.00 

Scope of work: 

▪ Remove existing roofing to expose wooden deck, dispose of properly 
▪ Install ice & water shield 6’ at eaves, 3’ in valleys 
▪ Install synthetic underlayment throughout the rest of the roof 
▪ Install Certainteed Landmark architectural shingles with all necessary venting and 

flashing 
▪ Reflash chimney 
▪ Provide owner with 2-year GR Roofing workmanship warranty 

 
Notes: 

▪ Color of shingle to be determined 

▪ Any deteriorated decking will need to be addressed on a time and materials basis. 

 
Please call if you have any questions. 

Sincerely, 

 

Eric R. Day 
Vice President                

                                                         

_______________________________          _______________________ 

 Approval Signature       Date 















General Ledger Detail Report
January to December

Accounts: G 3-592-00 - G 3-592-0012:47 PM
Belgrade

Page 1
09/13/2022

Trans RCB/ Balance 
Date Per Type Jrnl Description--- Wrnt Check# Vendor------ Debits Credits Debit Credit

69,341.123 - CAPITAL PROJ
69,341.12    592-00  RECREATION

04/21/22 01 B G 0152 Beg Bal Adjustments 36,501.49
January 0.00 36,501.49 105,842.61

07/06/22 07 A 0271 PARKS/REC 0074 22741 00403 - FIRE SERVICE 1,950.00
07/20/22 07 A 0296 CFAS PAINTED PORCH 0082 22842 00750 - RYAN NEZOL 4,350.00

July 6,300.00 0.00 99,542.61
Account..... 99,542.61
Fund........ 99,542.61

99,542.61Final Totals





 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• 2023 BUDGET MEETINGS (Action) 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Nicholas Poole, Treasurer 

Date: 9/16/2022 

Re: Suggested budget schedule 

Below is a suggested schedule for the budget process. These dates could 
change if a majority of board member can’t make it. The budget and warrant 
articles must be done and approved by January 15th. 

 

 

Dept. Heads 
9/20/2022-9/30/2022 will be the time frame where we meet with department 
heads. 

 

Budget Committee  

10/12/2022 - Will be the first meeting with the Budget Committee. Usually, we do 
half of the departments at one meeting and the other half at the second.  

11/9/2022 – One more meeting with the Budget Committee. By this time, we 
should have insurance numbers, or at the very least, accurate estimates.  

 

Selectboard 
11/20/2022 – First meeting with Selectboard. We go over the whole budget. 

12/14/2022 – Go over parts of the budget that we still had questions or concerns 
about. Also, go over any warrant articles that are ready and approve them. 

1/10/2022 – Final budget meeting with selectboard. This is to approve all 
remaining warrant articles and to go over the end of year numbers.  

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• REVIEW/APPROVE WARRANTS (Action) 























 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• HEALTH OFFICER RESIGNATION (Action) 



1

Lorna Dee Nichols

From: Jennifer Clements
Sent: Friday, September 9, 2022 10:02 AM
To: Lorna Dee Nichols; Melanie Jewell; Richard Damren; Daniel Newman; Barbara Allen; Carol Johnson
Subject: HO 

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Dear Town of Belgrade,  
 
I am writing to announce my resignation as Town Health Officer, effective three weeks from this date. My last day will 
be September 30, 2022.  
 
This was not an easy decision to make. Over the last few months, there have been many shifts in my fulltime job 
responsibilities and family priorities.  
 
I have enjoyed working with our community over the last year.  
 
Thank you for allowing me the opportunity to serve the Town of Belgrade.  
 
Jennifer 
 
Jennifer Clements, RN 
Health Officer 
Town of Belgrade 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• PAYROLL DISBURSEMENT MEMO (Action) 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 

From: Lorna Dee Nichols, Town Manager 

Date: Sept. 15, 2020 

Re: Disbursement Policy 

 
Speaking with the Town’s legal counsel, the Board will need to revise the current policy 
for payroll warrants to be in compliance with State law. 



1

Lorna Dee Nichols

From: Philip Saucier <psaucier@bernsteinshur.com>
Sent: Thursday, September 15, 2022 10:18 AM
To: Lorna Dee Nichols
Cc: Amanda J. Methot
Subject: RE: Disbursement Policy
Attachments: Delegation of Authority to Sign Payroll Disbursements 8-7-2018.doc; 05-15-2012 spmin.doc; Draft 

Belgrade Payroll Disbursement Policy.docx

EXTERNAL MESSAGE: 

Hi Lorna, 
 
It was good to talk with you a few moments.  I have had a chance to review the Town’s Payroll Disbursement 
Policy, and in my view it is not consistent with Maine law and should be amended by the Board of Selectmen 
to require at least one Board member to sign disbursement warrants. 
 
Under 30‐A M.R.S. § 5603(2)(A), and except as otherwise provided by charter or ordinance, the Town’s 
treasurer can only disburse money on the authority signed by a majority of the Board of Selectmen.  The 
statute does, however, give the Board the authority to adopt a written policy to permit the disbursement of 
wages and benefits when the disbursement warrant is signed by one or more municipal officers (i.e. Select 
Board members) – and that policy must be filed with the clerk and treasurer and renewed annually by the 
Board.   In other words, the Board’s policy could authorize the Chair (or another member specifically designed) 
to sign instead of having a majority of the board affirmatively vote to sign each disbursement warrant.  
 
I have provided a draft policy for your review that has been adapted from the MMA template. You’ll see the 
specific Board member must be designated in the policy, you could simply add “the Chair” or a specific person. 
 
I hope this is helpful, and please let me know if you have any further questions. 
 
‐Phil 
 

Philip Saucier
  

BERNSTEINSHUR 
  

 -  
 

Shareholder
  

Municipal & Governmental Services Practice Group Leader
 

207 228-7160 direct 
 

My Bio  

 

 | 
 

Portland, ME 

     

Confidentiality notice:  Confidentiality notice: If you are not the person intended to receive this email, please notify us and please do not make use 
of this email for any purpose. Thank you.      

From: Lorna Dee Nichols <townmanager@townofbelgrade.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2022 10:37 AM 
To: Philip Saucier <psaucier@bernsteinshur.com> 
Subject: RE: Disbursement Policy 
 

EXTERNAL EMAIL 



2

 
Attached for your review – thank you Phil! 
  
I also attached 5/15/2012 minutes – see #8. 
  
Lorna 
  

Lorna Dee Nichols 
TOWN MANAGER 
Town of Belgrade 
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, ME   04917 
townmanager@townofbelgrade.com 
207‐495‐2258 
  

Put your heart, mind and soul into even your smallest acts. This is the secret of success. ~ Have a Festive 
Day! 
  
Confidentiality notice: This message is intended only for the person to whom addressed in the text above and may contain privileged or confidential 
information. If you are not that person, any use of this message is prohibited. We request that you notify us by reply to this message, and then delete all copies 
of this message including any contained in your reply. Thank you. 
  
DISCLAIMER: Please be advised that pursuant to Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 402 (3), a public record includes any written, printed or graphic matter or any 
mechanical  or electronic data in the possession or custody of an agency or public official that has been received or prepared for the use in connection with the 
transaction of public or governmental business and contains information relating to the transaction of said business; therefore, the public is advised that any 
correspondence, whether by traditional method or e‐mail with Town offices or Town officials, with certain limited exceptions, is public record and is available 
for review by any interested party. 
  

  
  
 
 

  

From: Philip Saucier <psaucier@bernsteinshur.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2022 10:25 AM 
To: Lorna Dee Nichols <townmanager@townofbelgrade.com> 
Subject: RE: Disbursement Policy 
  
EXTERNAL MESSAGE: 

Hi Lorna, 
  
Congratulations on your new appointment!  I’m looking forward to working with you in Belgrade. 
  
I would be happy to help review this matter – do you have a copy of the Disbursement Policy that you could 
email me? 
 
Take care, 
Phil 
  

Philip Saucier
 

Shareholder 
Municipal & Governmental Services Practice Group Leader
 

207 228-7160 direct 
207 774-1200 main 



3

207 774-1127 fax
 

My Bio  | LinkedIn
 

 |  Twitter
   

BERNSTEINSHUR 
 

Portland, ME 

  

 | Manchester, NH
  

 |  Augusta, ME 

  

 |  bernsteinshur.com 

 

  

Confidentiality notice:   This message is intended only for the person to whom addressed in the text above and may contain privileged or confidential 
information. If you are not that person, any use of this message is prohibited. We request that you notify us by reply to this message, and then delete 
all copies of this message including any contained in your reply. Thank you.  
  

From: Lorna Dee Nichols <townmanager@townofbelgrade.com>  
Sent: Monday, September 12, 2022 10:18 AM 
To: Philip Saucier <psaucier@bernsteinshur.com> 
Subject: Disbursement Policy 
  

EXTERNAL EMAIL 

  
Good morning Phil! 
  
I have finished up my first week as the new Town Manager for Belgrade and diving right in for week two. I see the Town 
has a disbursement policy (effective 2012) authorizing the Town Manager to sign warrants for Payroll, State (BMV, etc.) 
and to sign a check for postage for bulk rate mailers as needed. 
  
I wanted to check to be certain this type of policy is legal and compliant. 
  
Would you let me know your thoughts? 
  
Thank you so much! 
  

Lorna Dee Nichols 
TOWN MANAGER 
Town of Belgrade 
990 Augusta Road 
Belgrade, ME   04917 
townmanager@townofbelgrade.com 
207‐495‐2258 
  

Put your heart, mind and soul into even your smallest acts. This is the secret of success. ~ Have a Festive 
Day! 
  
Confidentiality notice: This message is intended only for the person to whom addressed in the text above and may contain privileged or confidential 
information. If you are not that person, any use of this message is prohibited. We request that you notify us by reply to this message, and then delete all copies 
of this message including any contained in your reply. Thank you. 
  
DISCLAIMER: Please be advised that pursuant to Title 1 M.R.S.A. Section 402 (3), a public record includes any written, printed or graphic matter or any 
mechanical  or electronic data in the possession or custody of an agency or public official that has been received or prepared for the use in connection with the 
transaction of public or governmental business and contains information relating to the transaction of said business; therefore, the public is advised that any 
correspondence, whether by traditional method or e‐mail with Town offices or Town officials, with certain limited exceptions, is public record and is available 
for review by any interested party. 
  

  
  
 
 

  



TOWN OF BELGRADE 

BOARD OF SELECTPERSONS’ POLICY ON DISBURSEMENT OF 
MUNICIPAL PAYROLL FUNDS 

Pursuant 30-A M.R.S.A. Section 5603(2)(A)(1), the Town Treasurer is hereby authorized to 
disburse funds to pay the costs of municipal employees’ wages and benefits when the Treasurer 
has been presented with a disbursement warrant signed by one or more member of the Board of 
Selectpersons, specifically _____________________________________________________. 

Before disbursing any funds on such a warrant, however, the Town Treasurer shall satisfy 
himself or herself that the warrant is indeed signed by the designated Board member. The 
Treasurer shall not, however, pay any item on a warrant if payment of that item would result in 
an overdraft, and shall report any refusal to honor the item in writing to Board of Selectpersons 
promptly. 

The Chair of the Board of Selectpersons shall file a copy of this policy with the Town Clerk and 
provide a copy to the Municipal Treasurer and shall ensure that this policy is brought to the 
attention of the Board of Selectpersons annually for consideration of renewal. The Town Clerk 
shall, after approval by the Board of Selectpersons of any meeting in which they have voted a 
renewal of this policy, attest to such renewal by endorsing the policy below, and shall then file a 
copy of that policy bearing that renewal endorsement in the Clerk’s files and shall deliver a copy 
to the Municipal Treasurer 

Adopted: September 20, 2022  ________________________________ 
   
  ________________________________ 
   
  ________________________________ 
   
 
  ________________________________ 

   
  ________________________________ 
  Board of Selectpersons 

Certified renewed: 

Date    Clerk’s initial 
__________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• BINGO REQUEST – Belgrade PTO (Action)  



















 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
• TOWN MANAGER REPORT  



1 
 

TOWN OF BELGRADE, MAINE 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

Lorna Dee Nichols 

         
______________________________________________________________________ 

 
Town Manager’s Report 

September 20, 2022, Select Board Meeting 

 

Water Project 

We received the updated agreement from the Town’s attorney for the MEDOT/BELGRADE 
Water project for your review and approval. We’ll need this finalized so that the agreement can 
be printed and made available with the Warrant for November 8 (absentee ballots must be 
available by October 8, we should have the materials on the warrant finalized so voters are 
informed prior to completing the ballot process). A public hearing will be held for the warrant at 
your next regular meeting on October 4. The deadline to get the notice for hearing posted is 
September 26.  

 

After speaking with our Town attorney, if the Board does not feel comfortable with the current 
agreement (you have more questions, concerns etc.), Phil sent along correct warrant article 
language for the November ballot which would allow voters to approve the agreement by 
authorizing the Select Board to iron out the final details. This information is also included in your 
packet. 

 

Dalton Property 

Facilities Supervisor Cory will give you an update at the September 20 meeting on electrical and 
plumbing work that needs to be done. In addition, the Town has had an RFP for roof repair out 
for some time with no bids. After putting the information out again this week, we did have one 
bid come in which is included in your packet. The Board should make a decision on this and 
then where to take these funds from. A possibility to consider would be the Parks and 
Recreation Reserve which has a balance of $99,542.61. In addition, we have a potential grant 
opportunity through the State of Maine that I have asked Cory to look into for possible help in 
funding upgrades and improvements to the property. 

 

 

 

990 Augusta Road 
townmanager@townofbelgrade.com 

Belgrade, ME 04917 
207-495-2258 

www.townofbelgrade.com 
 

mailto:townmanager@townofbelgrade.com
http://www.townofbelgrade.com/


2 
 

Health Officer 

We received a resignation notice from Jennifer Clements on September 9 with an effective date 
of September 30, 2022. This is included in your packet and will be listed as an action item for 
your September 20 meeting. 

 

Maine DOT Region 2 Pavement Preservation Project 

Included in your packet for review is a notice from the Maine Department of Transportation for a 
pavement preservation project which will go out to bid in March of 2023. The project is slated to 
begin 0.03 of a mile north of Darin Drive in August and extend north 6.21 miles.  

 

TRIO-Web 

With the server upgrade, we can now begin the upgrade to TRIO-Web. I have reached out to 
Harris Computers (TRIO) for quotes on adding the Sketch module for the 2023 budget process, 
as well as the cost associated with having TRIO host for us. Once Harris sets up access to the 
web program, I’ll be able to assess where we are and what needs to be done to migrate from 
SQL, along with setting up the appropriate training for the front office. One of the great benefits 
of TRIO-Web is that you can access from anywhere and by adding the sketch module, we can 
work to get property cards created and uploaded to our website. This would save an incredible 
amount of time the front office spends responding to requests as well as providing easier 
access in the event we ever do a revaluation. 

 

CEO 

We held interviews for the position of Code Enforcement Officer on Friday morning, September 
16. The interview committee has recommended one candidate for hire. 

 

Narrows West Bridge 

Stakeholders met at the bridge with Maine D.O.T. to determine the best areas for turnarounds 
for school buses, plow trucks and discussed how to ensure emergency services are able to 
access residents on either side of the bridge as it will be closed during the winter months. You 
will find a memo giving a brief recap of that meeting in your packet. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 
 

Minot Hill Chip Sealing 

I met with Road Commissioner Jason Stevens this week and we went over the RFP and 
contract for the work that has been done. As you know, we have fielded several complaints and 
concerns about the condition of the road after this work had been completed. You will see some 
highlighted areas on the paperwork in your packet to review. In addition, the last payment in the 
amount of $85,333.14 is included in AP Warrant 106 for your review/approval at the September 
20 meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
Lorna Dee Nichols, Town Manager / Belgrade 



Memo 
To: Board of Selectpersons 
From: Lorna Dee Nichols, Town Manager 
Date: Sept. 15, 2020 
Re: Narrows West Bridge Meeting 

 
Myself, Maine D.O.T. staff (Tony and Devan), Rescue Chief Travis, Selectperson Carol 
Johnson, RSU 18 Transportation Director and a representative of Mt. Vernon all met 
this morning to identify safe turn-arounds on either side of the bridge project for the 
winter months. 

To recap:  

• The project will go out to bid late this month or early October 
• Materials will then be ordered 
• They will take out the current structure and ramps mid-November 
• Work will commence through the winter 
• The road should be open in April with paving in May 
• They have a completion target date of Memorial Day (or prior to) 
• There are environmental issues working in/near the water by the end of April 
• The bridge is 24’x56’ with 11-foot lanes and 1 feet of shoulder 

 

The D.O.T. sub will plow the construction area to the boat landing (Mt. Vernon will 
continue to plow the boat landing as this will be a turn-around); on the other side to the 
Burdette’s residence if an agreement can be reached to allow the use of their driveway 
as a turn-around (across from Hermann Drive). 

D.O.T. will provide a template for the Town to use for an agreement for the use of the 
driveway (Burdette). 

Signage will include ‘local traffic only’, ‘bus turn around ahead’, construction signs etc. 

D.O.T. will send a map that we can post to the Town’s Facebook page, website etc. 

D.O.T. will host a public meeting for the project. 

We explored the runoff carrying fines into the lake; pictures of this could be sent to 
D.O.T. to help them as they review what options they might consider. They made no 



promises they would do anything. The type of property on either side of the bridge area 
is prohibitive in many ways (conservation, historic). 

Removing the top layer of soil and adding crushed rock was discussed which would 
help to filter the fines from the water, preventing those from being washed into the lake 
as an option. 

Travis asked about a dry hydrant installation; they said it is a simple process and they 
do it often. Normally Towns pay for the materials and D.O.T. installs but again, they 
would need to explore if they could do that in this area because of the type of property 
(conservation, historic). 

 













Architectural Survey Report  
MaineDOT  

Bridge Replacement 
Rome, Maine 

WIN 25107.00 
 

Julie Senk 
Historic Preservation Coordinator 

Maine DOT 
16 State House Station 

Augusta, ME 04333 
Julie.senk@maine.gov 

207.592.3486 
 

 
 

 
Prepared for: Sponsoring agency or entity 

Maine Department of Transportation, Augusta, Maine 
  
Dates: Provide the dates from when the project was started up through when the report was written and/or revised and submitted. 

March 29, 2022 – August 18, 2022 

  
Level: Reconnaissance or Intensive 

Reconnaissance 
  
Name of surveyors: (If different from author, provide contact information for each surveyor.) 

Julie Senk 
  
Continuing project? If so, please summarize previous efforts. 

      
 No. 
  

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 The proposed undertaking consists of the replacement of the Narrows West 

Bridge (#5912) that carries Castle Island Road over Long Pond, located 0.01 
of a mile west of the Belgrade town line. There are fifteen properties within 
the survey area that are over 45 years of age, all of which are eligible for  
listing in the National Register of Historic Places as a historic district.  

  

II. RESEARCH DESIGN AND BACKGROUND RESEARCH 
 
  
A. Basis: Describe the purpose of this survey.  Identify the Federal or State regulations mandating this survey, or any Programmatic 

Agreements associated with this project. 

 

 The purpose of the survey is to identify and document all resources 45 years 
old or older within the APE and evaluate eligibility for listing in the National 
Register of Historic Places. The survey is a requirement by Section 106 of 
the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, 16 U.S.C 470 f, 
which states that prior to the expenditure of any Federal funds, the agency 
should consider the effect of any undertaking on any district, site, building, 
structure or object listed in or eligible for the National Register of Historic 
Places. The Maine Department of Transportation will report all findings to the 
Maine Historic Preservation Commission pursuant to the Programmatic 
Agreement with Federal Highway Administration, Federal Transportation 



Administration and MaineDOT. 
 

  
B. Project Description/ 
Scope of Work: 

Describe the underlying project, specifically citing the type of project and duration of project.  Summarize planned or 

anticipated alterations to landscapes, buildings, structures, districts, objects or sites. 

 

 The proposed undertaking consists of the replacement of the Narrows West 
Bridge (#5912) that carries Castle Island Road over Long Pond, located 0.01 
of a mile west of the Belgrade town line. 

  
C. Area of Potential 
Effect: 

1. On a USGS topographic map draw the outermost boundary of the area of potential effect in red. Label this line 

“Project APE”. If necessary, additional topographic maps or overlays may be submitted showing the limits of each 

specific APE if more than one potential effect is present within the project area. 
 

2. List all the potential effects associated with the above cited scope of work. Distinguish between direct and indirect 

effects when applicable. 

 

The direct effects associated with this project will be due to the 
replacement of Narrows West Bridge, including possible takes 
(temporary or permanent), change in physical features and other 
effects that are not completely outlined at this time. These effects will 
only be experienced by the properties adjacent to the proposed project. 
Indirect effects associated with this project are visual for any property 
that has visual line of the project area. 
 
Effects will be further outlined once more information including design 
plans are detailed for the project. At this time, the architectural survey 
is capturing any historic resources that could be potentially affected by 
the project. 
3. Provide a narrative of how the geographical limit of each potential effect within the project area was established. 

 

The Area of Potential Effects is defined as the area in which the project 
may cause alterations to the visual setting or characteristics of  
properties in the vicinity of the project. This definition is illustrated on 
the topographic map submitted with the survey package. 

 

  
 

  

D. Survey Boundaries: 1. Draw the boundaries of the survey on the topographic map in blue or black and label this line “Survey Boundaries.” The 
boundaries of a survey map include portions of a property that lie outside the APE. 

  
 2. Describe the limits of the surveyed area. The survey boundary may be larger than the APE. Make reference to geographic 

landmarks, addresses or political boundaries. Utilize reasonable demarcations – tree lines, back lots. 

 

 

 The survey boundaries generally mimic the APE. The APE begins 
approximately 150’ west of the Narrows West Bridge and extends 
approximately 280’ east.  The survey boundaries deviate to the north and 
south in order to capture the parcels associated with Castle Island Camps.  

  

E. Survey Methodology: 1. Describe background research method. 

 

 The National Register Information System and MHPC files were consulted to 
determine if there are any properties in the APE that are listed in, or 
officially eligible for listing in, the National Register. Additionally, the 
surveyor looked at MHPC files to determine if they contained any previously 
recorded resources within the APE. Local histories and maps were accessed 
via the internet.  

 2. Describe field research method. 

 

 The surveyor conducted an initial drive through the project area and 



determined there were resources present greater than forty-five years of 
age. Next, the surveyor walked the project area and recorded on MHPC 
survey forms all of the buildings, structures, sites, objects, and landscape 
features within the boundaries that appeared to be forty-five years old or 
older, and photographs were taken of each resource. 

 3. Did you undertake a file search at MHPC for NR or previously recorded properties? 

 

 Yes.   
  

III. SURVEY FINDINGS  
  

  

A. Acres: Provide the total number of acres within the survey boundaries. 

The survey area is approximately 3 acres. 
  

  

B. Setting: Provide a general overview of the setting, including topography, development, and landscape. 

  
The project area is located in a rural setting in central Maine, situated at the 
town lines of Rome, Belgrade, and Mount Vernon. The topography at the 
project area is flat and vegetation is dense. Castle Island Road lays at the 
center of the project area, splitting Long Pond Lake to the north and south. 
Development is sparse and consists mostly of residential buildings and 
summer camps.   
 
The Belgrade Lakes region was settled in the late 18th century. The area 
developed around farming before mills and water-powered factories became 
prevalent in the early 19th century. The growth of Maine’s tourism industry 
in the mid-to-late 19th century ushered in a new and prosperous era for the 
region. Camps and summer cottages sprang up along the lakes in the early 
20th century as a result. The area is still a popular tourist destination today.  

  

C. Number of Resources 
Recorded: 

Count each individually recorded building, structure, object, or site.  

 Fifteen resources were surveyed.  
  

D. Previously 
Inventoried Properties: 

Address whether any of the resources had been previously surveyed. If so, how many, and how were these properties 

represented and evaluated within the current project? 

 No resources were previously surveyed. 
  

  

E. Types of Properties: 1. Summarize general trends within the project area: commercial, residential, urban, rural, etc. 
 

 The project area contains recreational resources within a rural setting. 
 

 2. Summarize the age, style, and condition of the resources within the project area. 
 

 All resources within the project area are vernacular style camp buildings and 
cabins that were built in 1929, save for one cabin that was built c. 1960. All 
resources are in good condition 
 

 3. Describe in detail any potentially eligible individual properties or historic districts. 

 



 The Castle Island Camps Historic District is eligible for listing in the National 
Register. The district is comprised of fifteen contributing buildings clustered 
among a small one-acre island known as Castle Island in Long Pond Lake. 
Castle Island Road connects the island to the easterly town of Belgrade and 
the westerly towns of Rome and Mt. Vernon. The focal point of the district is 
the Main/Dining Hall (SM #13), which is prominently sited at the edge of the 
road facing south. The Main Hall is a rectangular two-story building that is 
sheathed in novelty siding and covered with a gable-front roof. An exterior 
cobblestone chimney is present on the western façade. A small one-story 
building (SM #14) used as a maintenance/tool shed is situated at the rear of 
the Maine/Dining Hall. It is also sheathed in novelty siding. Twelve one-story 
cabins are located along the perimeter of the island and form a circle around 
the Main/Dining Hall. Cabins 1 & 2 are located on the southern side of the 
road across from the Main/Dining Hall, leaving the remaining cabins situated 
on the northern side. All of the cabins (SM #1-12) are vernacular style one-
story buildings that are sheathed in novelty siding. The cabins alternate 
between gable and hip roofs in no apparent order, and all have engaged 
porches. The Recreational Hall (SM #13) is a rectangular one-story building 
that is sheathed in novelty siding and covered with a gable-front roof.  

  

F. NR Eligibility: 1. Address resource integrity, NR criteria, area of significance and period of significance. 

 

 The Castle Island Camps Historic District is eligible for listing in the National 
Register under Criterion A for Entertainment/Recreation on the local level as 
a significant example of a summer camp complex. Castle Island Camps 
opened in 1929 under the ownership of Leighton Castle and has operated 
continuously as a summer tourist destination. It is a rare surviving example 
of a recreational camp that retains all original buildings and maintains its 
historic use. It holds a high level of integrity. Its period of significance is 
1929 – 1973.  
 
 

 2. For a historic district provide a topographic map showing the limits of the proposed district illustrating street or landscape 
views and all non-historic or non-contributing resources. 

  
  

IV. BIBLIOGRAPHY  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
United States Department of the Interior, Geological Survey. "Belgrade 
Lakes Quadrangle, Maine Kennebec County, 7.5 Minute Series." 
 
Guptill, Robert A., Past and Present: Pictures and People of Belgrade, Maine, 
1774-1976. Belgrade, ME: Heritage Committee of Belgrade Bicentennial 
Observance, 1976. 
 
Pfeffer, W. Tad., The Hand of the Small-Town Builder: Vernacular Summer 
Architecture in New England, 1870-1935. Boston, MA: David R. Godine, 
2014. 
 
 
 

 


	01 TOWN OF BELGRADE Board Packet Cover Sheet
	02 September 20 2022 Selectboard Agenda
	02a
	03 September 6,  2022, Selectboard Minutes
	03a
	04 Bench include in pkt
	05 Bench Placement
	06a
	07 If the Board chooses to review and finalize the MEDOT
	08 MaineDOT  Response to Town Redline Belgrade Cooperative Agreement 09-07-22
	08a
	09 chip seal include in pkt
	11a
	12 Town Office Hours Memo
	12a
	13A PLACEHOLDER MEMO FOR DALTON PROPERTY FROM CORY
	13B Roof Quote 1 Dalton Property
	15 dalton prop include in pkt
	16 Rec Reserve as of 9-13-22
	17 efficiency maine include in pkt
	17a
	18 PLACEHOLDER MEMO FOR BUDGET
	21
	22 AP Warrant 106 09.15.2022
	23 Payroll Warrant 104 09.14.2022
	23a
	24 Health Officer Resignation
	24a
	25 Disbursement Memo
	26 Attorney Email re_Disbursement Policy
	27 Draft Belgrade Payroll Disbursement Policy
	28
	28a
	28b
	29
	30 TM Report September 20 2022
	31 Memo Narrows Bridge Meeting 09.15.2022
	32 Rome 25107.00 MHPC Concur NR HD 8.30.2022
	33 25107.00 PDR Plans
	34 Rome 25107.00 Survey Report

